
 

AGENDA 
Utility Management Review Board 

February 7,  2013 
10:00 am 

Room 31, Legislative Plaza 
301 Sixth Avenue North 

(6th Avenue between Charlotte Avenue and Union Street) 
Nashville, Tennessee 

 

Call to Order 
 
Approval of Minutes        October 4, 2012   
     
Election of officers 
 
 
Cases:    Carderview Utility District   Johnson County 
    Natural Gas Utility District   Hawkins County 
     
Status:    Bedford County Utility District   Bedford County 
    Iron City Utility District   Lawrence County 
    Lone Oak Utility District   Sequatchie County 
 
Cases – Water loss:   Cherokee Hills Utility District   Polk County 

Mooresburg Utility District   Hawkins County 
West Point Utility District   Lawrence County 
Samburg Utility District   Obion County    

 
Status – Water loss:    

Minor Hill Utility District   Giles County    
    Double Springs Utility District   Putnam County   
    Quebeck-Walling Utility District  White County 
 
Compliance:   Cedar Grove Utility District   Carroll County 

Claiborne County Utilities District  Claiborne County 
Harbor Utility District   Benton County 

 
Miscellaneous:   Name change and merger   Hamilton County 
    Pending legislation        
    Complaint  log 
    Jurisdiction list 

Next UMRB regular meeting   April 5, 2012 
 To be held in Smithville re: DeKalb UD rate review petition 
2013 meeting dates  

   
Open Discussion 
 
Visitors to the Legislative Plaza are required to pass through a metal detector and must present photo identification.  Individuals with disabilities who wish to 
participate in this meeting or to review filings should contact the Division of Local Government Audit to discuss any auxiliary aids or services need to facilitate such 
participation.  Such contact may be in person or by writing, telephone or other means, and should be made prior to the scheduled meeting date to allow time to 
provide such aid or service.  Contact the Division of Local Government Audit (Ms. Joyce Welborn) for further information. 

505 Deaderick Street, Suite 1500 
James K. Polk State Office Building 

Nashville, TN  37243-1402 
Telephone (615) 401-7864 

Fax (615) 741-6216 
Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov 

1

mailto:Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov


MINUTES 
of the 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
October 4, 2012 

10:00 am  
 
 
Chairperson Ann Butterworth opened the meeting of the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) in 
Room 31 of the Legislative Plaza in Nashville, Tennessee. 
 
Board members present and constituting a quorum: 
Ann Butterworth, Chairperson, Comptroller Designee 
Tom Moss, Vice-Chairman, Commissioner of the Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) 
Designee 
Donnie Leggett, Hardeman-Fayette Utility District Manager 
Charlie Anderson, Bloomingdale Utility District Commissioner 
Troy Roach, New Market Utility District Manager 
Donald Stafford, Eastside Utility District Manager 
Jason West, Second South Cheatham Utility District Commissioner 
Rebecca Hunter, Hixson Utility District Commissioner 
 
Staff present: 
Joyce Welborn, Comptroller’s Office 
Greg Cothron, Assistant General Counsel, Comptroller’s Office 
Sheila Reed, Division of Local Government Audit, Comptroller’s Office 
 
Ms. Butterworth welcomed new member Rebecca Hunter, a commissioner from Hixson Utility District in 
Chattanooga. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Mr. Anderson moved approval of the minutes of August 9, 2012.  Mr. Stafford seconded the motion, 
which was unanimously approved. 
 
Rate review petition DeKalb Utility District ratepayers vs. DeKalb Utility District 

Mr. Cothron explained the request before the Board as a petition filed under TCA 7-82-102 by the 
ratepayers of the DeKalb Utility District.  Mr. Cothron’s opinion is that the petition is not requesting a 
rate review, but is requesting a review of the services being provided by the DeKalb Utility District, 
specifically those related to the construction of a water treatment facility.  The District has for many 
years purchased its water from the City of Smithville. 

2



Mr. Jason Holleman, attorney for the ratepayers, stated that the petition requested a rate review of the 
District as well as the review of the decision of the Commissioners of the District to build the treatment 
facility.  The bond issue had been approved, although the issuance is pending the actions of the UMRB.  
Mr. Holleman also stated the ratepayers believe the construction of the plant is redundant, unnecessary 
and will cause rate increases to ratepayers of both the District and the City of Smithville.  He also asked, 
if the petition is found to not be sufficient based on Board counsel’s opinion, it be allowed to be 
amended. 

Mr. Keith Blair, attorney for the DeKalb Utility District, stated that the commissioners of the District 
made a management decision they feel is in the best interest of the customers of the District.  He asked 
the Board do support the Board counsel’s opinion and dismiss the petition. 

Mr. West moved to take no action on the petition as presented, withdrawn.  Mr. Anderson moved to 
continue any action until the next meeting, Mr. West seconded the motion. Motion and second were 
withdrawn. 

After questions from Board members, Mr. Roger Turney, Chairman of the District’s Board of 
Commissioners, spoke, stating that every delay is costing the District’s customers money because of the 
interest rates and costs related to the bond issue.  He asked that the Board not overrule the 
management decision of the Board of Commissioners. 

Mr. Leggett called for the question.  The continuing motion failed by vote voice.  Mr. Moss stated that 
he did not believe it is within the statutory authority of the UMRB to override the management 
decisions of the Board of Commissioners and moved to dismiss the request to evaluate the need for a 
new treatment plant, but recommend the rate study be done as referenced in TCA 7-82-102.  Mr. 
Stafford seconded the motion which passed with Mr. Leggett voting no. 

 

Customer complaint reviews 

Clayton vs. Bedford County Utility District 

Mr. John Clayton filed a complaint stating that the Bedford County Utility District had not followed its 
policies by not notifying him promptly, either by door hanger or a phone call, of a possible leak.  If 
proper procedures of the District had been followed he would not be required to pay over $700 for 
water leakage.  The District appears to follow its procedures regarding a phone call, but the phone 
number on file had been disconnected by Mr. Clayton.  The District had not been notified of any change 
in the contact information. 

Mr. Roach asked Mr. Clayton why he hadn’t noticed the increased amount on the water bill for the first 
month and corrected the issue.  Mr. Clayton stated that he had been in the hospital and had simply 
misread his water bill, paying the normal amount.    Mr. Martin Davis, Manager of the District stated 
that the District attempted to follow its policies in place at the time and, since the incident with Mr. 
Clayton, have clarified and updated those policies.  Mr. Roach moved to accept the staff 

3



recommendation to find in favor of the District.  Mr. Stafford seconded the motion which was carried 
unanimously. 

Gambrel vs. Arthur Shawanee Utility District  

Mr. and Mrs. Gambrel filed a complaint stating that Arthur Shawanee Utility District had not followed its 
policies by discontinuing water service without notice and causing damage inside the house because of 
the pressure release during reconnection.  Although the Gambrels were not present, Mr. Eric Garland, 
manager of the District stated that they try very hard to follow their own policies and felt like they had 
done so.  He also stated that employees of the District had been to Ms. Gambrels property several times 
dealing with additional leaks in her plumbing.  Mr. Stafford moved to accept the staff recommendation 
to find in favor of the District.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 

Stark vs. First Utility District of Hardin County 

Mr. Don Stark filed a complaint stating that First Utility District of Hardin County had not followed its 
policies.  The meter readings at his cabin reflected abnormal usage at least four times since 2001.  The 
property is rarely used and the District accepts no blame and won’t test the meter at its expense. 
Information provided by the District appeared to reflect that its policies were followed.  Representatives 
from the District were present.  Ms. Hunter moved to accept the staff recommendation to find in favor 
of the District.  Mr. Leggett seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 

Grimm vs. H. B. & T. S. Utility District  

Ms. Barbara Grimm filed a complaint stating that H. B. & T. S. Utility District had not followed its policies 
regarding the adjustment of water leaks because the District should have located the leaks. Ms. Grimm 
was not present.  Mr. Dewey Branstetter, attorney for the District, stated that the proper adjustments 
had been made.  In fact, the District had made repairs to the Grimm property which should have been 
paid for by the Grimm.  Mr. Anderson moved to accept the staff recommendation to find in favor of the 
District.  Mr. Moss seconded the motion which carried unanimously. 

Cases – Financial 

Clarksburg Utility District 

Clarksburg Utility District had been reported to the Board for two consecutive years with a negative 
change in net assets in its water system.  Effective October 1, 2012, the commissioners voted to increase 
the minimum bill by $1.00 and all usage over 2,500 gallons by $0.25 per thousand.  Staff had 
recommended to the District an 8% increase.  The increase passed was approximately 5.4%.  Although 
this is marginal, staff recommended the Board endorse the actions of the District and continue to 
monitor it.  Mr. Leggett moved to accept staff’s recommendation.  Mr. Stafford seconded the motion 
which was carried unanimously. 

 

4



Siam Utility District 

The Siam Utility District had been reported to the Board for two consecutive years with a negative 
change in net assets and excessive water loss of 39.81%.  This case had been postponed from the 
previous meeting because current information had not been submitted.  Effective April 2012, rates were 
increased approximately 24% on a 5,000 gallon water bill.  Expenses are being reduced in the future by 
the purchase of water from the Watauga River Regional Water Authority, resulting in savings of $3,500 
monthly in electrical (pumping) costs and eliminating the use of chemicals.  One-time expenses related 
to the installation of a water line and replacement of some 4” or 6” lines should be eliminated.  The 
District has also started an aggressive leak detection program.  Mr. Leggett moved to endorse the 
actions of the Siam Utility District.  Ms. Hunter seconded the motion which carried unanimously.  

Cases - Water Loss 

Cherokee Hills Utility District 

Cherokee Hills Utility District had been reported has having an excessive water loss of 100%.  This is a 
non-metered system that was developed many years ago by the copper company.   District officials have 
stated that meters are no necessary and wish to be exempted from, or grandfathered in, the water loss 
requirements.  Mr. Moss moved to require District officials to attend the next board meeting to explain 
why meters are not necessary and why the average customer use exceeds 9,000 gallons per month.  Mr. 
Leggett seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

Hampton Utility District 

Hampton Utility District had been reported as having excessive water loss of 35.49%.  The case had been 
postponed from the last meeting of the Board because of questions related to the water loss 
information that had been submitted.  The three commissioners of the District, the manager and the 
engineer were present.  They explained that the District has installed over 1,300 new radio-read meters 
and still have about 250 to install.  A major leak had been repaired this week under a four-lane highway 
that was a major contributor to the water loss.  For projects had been completed recently (totaling over 
$1,300,000 that should assist in water loss reduction.  Two more projects are underway.  Mr. Moss 
moved to endorse the actions of the District and continue to monitor the water loss issues.  Mr. Stafford 
seconded the motion which was carried unanimously. 

Jackson County Utility District 

Jackson County Utility District had been reported to the Board as having excessive water loss of 36.93%. 
Mr. Moss the AWWA information was incorrect because of the Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) of less 
than “1.”  Mr. Chris Leauber, water loss consultant, stated that he had spoken with the District and it 
was nothing to worry about in this case.  The pressure levels will reduce the ILI.  The District has zones 
established that allows them to better monitor the situation.  Mr. Moss moved to accept the actions of 
the District and continue to monitor the situation.  Mr. Stafford seconded the motion.  Motion was 
carried unanimously.  

5



South Giles Utility District 

South Giles Utility District had been reported for excessive water loss of 40.744%.  The District 
submitted the information required by the Board.  Mr. Leggett moved to accept the information 
submitted and continue to monitor in conjunction with the annual audit.  Mr. Roach seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously. 

Woodlawn Utility District 

Woodlawn Utility District had been reported for excessive water loss of 37%.  The District submitted the 
information required by the Board.  Mr. Roach moved to accept the information submitted and continue 
to monitor in conjunction with the annual audit.  Ms. Hunter seconded the motion which carried 
unanimously 

Status Reports 

The Board received status reports from Bloomingdale, Fall River Road, and Gibson County Municipal 
Water utility districts. 

Compliance reports 

The Savannah Valley Utility District was presented to the Board as compliance reports.  This district has 
submitted financial statements which reflect both compliance with water loss and a positive change in 
net assets. 

Miscellaneous 

Ms. Welborn stated that the jurisdiction list and the water loss sheets were in the packet.  She 
distributed a complaint log and a new listing of the board members. 

The next meeting is currently set for February 7, 2013.  No cases have been scheduled for December 6, 
2012. 

Mr. Leggett moved to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Anderson seconded the motion.  The meeting 
adjourned at 12:05 pm CT 

 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Ann Butterworth     Joyce Welborn 
Chairperson      Board Coordinator 

6



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:  Carderview Utility District, Johnson County 
Manager: Sharon Church 
Customers: 403 water 
Water loss: 19.92% 
 
The Carderview Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two consecutive 
years with a negative change in net assets in its water system as of June 30, 2012. 
 
The financial and rate history is reflected on the attached sheet.  The system has two 
wells and approximately fifty miles of water line. 
 
District officials attribute the financial condition to the fact that there have been no new 
tap – in fact, they have lost customers – and no awards of grant funds.  However, a 
new USDA Rural Development loan/grant of $280,000/$130,000 closed on October 31, 
2012.  The interest rate is set at 3.45% for 38 years.  That project is to make repairs at 
the plant, install an aerator for iron, and build a much larger water tank.  The old tank 
had been leaking which resulted in a higher water loss for 2011.  
 
In July 2012, the minimum water bill was increased by $2.00, but the usage was also 
increased from 2,000 gallons to 2,500 gallons.  Effective January 1, 2013, the minimum 
usage was again set at 2,000 gallons.  
 
Relatively new meters, purchased from Consolidated Utility District in Rutherford County, 
were recently installed. 
 
Staff recommends the Board endorse the actions of the Carderview Utility 
District.  The District will remain under the jurisdiction until an audit is 
received which reflects compliance. 

7



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year June 30 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Water revenues 116,944$           119,969$           159,648$         155,365$         148,299$         
Other revenues 5,263$               14,688$             29,514$           19,075$           13,262$           
Grant revenue 51,836$             56,733$             4,002$             
Total Operating Revenues 174,043$           191,390$           193,164$         174,440$         161,561$         

Total Operating Expenses 148,971$           176,214$           195,100$         169,757$         173,029$         

Operating Income 25,072$             15,176$             (1,936)$            4,683$             (11,468)$          

Interest Expense 9,395$               8,854$               9,047$             14,260$           8,298$             

Change in Net Assets 15,677$             6,322$               (10,983)$          (9,577)$            (19,766)$          

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 2,022$                  2,530$                  5,034$                10,300$              2,870$                
Depreciation 35,224$                35,779$                35,518$              39,308$              41,374$              

Water Rates
Residential
0 - 2,000 gallons 22.85$                  25.66$                  27.16$                27.16$                27.16$                
All over 3.50$                    3.75$                    5.50$                  5.50$                  5.50$                  
Commercial
0 - 2,000 gallons 29.20$                  25.66$                  32.00$                32.00$                32.00$                
All over 6.75$                    3.75$                    9.00$                  9.00$                  9.00$                  
Water customers 333                       347                       347                     403                     343                     
Water Loss 10.330% 12.450% 9.800% 25.450% 19.920%

Tap fee 1,500.00$          1,800.00$          1,800.00$        1,800.00$        1,800.00$        
Address change 10.00$               10.00$               10.00$             10.00$             10.00$             
Turn on after non payment 50.00$               50.00$               50.00$             50.00$             50.00$             
Returned check fee 20.00$               20.00$               20.00$             20.00$             20.00$             
Late payment fee - residential 3.00$                 7.00$                 5.00$               5.00$               5.00$               
Late payment fee - commercial 5.00$                 7.00$                 7.00$               7.00$               7.00$               
Connection fee - owner 50.00$             50.00$             50.00$             
Connection fee - renter 100.00$           100.00$           100.00$           
Reconnection fee 50.00$             50.00$             50.00$             
Payment by debit card 1.00$               1.00$               
Cleaning around meters 25.00$             25.00$             

CARDERVIEW UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

8



9



10



11



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:  Natural Gas Utility District, Hawkins County 
Manager: Patrick Lund 
Customers: 7,000 natural gas; 1,500 propane 
 
The Hawkins County Gas Utility has been reported to the Board as having two 
consecutive years with a negative change in net assets in its gas system as of March 31, 
2012. 
 
The financial and rate history is reflected on the attached sheet.  The District has been 
debt free since 2000. 
 
An uncollectable account written off in FY 11 and collected in FY 12 resulted in the 
negative change in FY 11.  District officials explained that the sales of natural gas were 
down 18% and propane gas sales were down 20% from FY 11 to FY 12 due to an 
unseasonable warm winter   
 
The Board deferred a natural gas rate increase until April 2013 to help customers 
through the winter.  A propane rate increase had taken effect the previous year.  The 
wholesale cost of propane has declined from the previous year, but the rates were not 
reduced.  The District has sufficient cash reserves to weather another loss  In the 
meantime, the District is studying a weather normalization rate.   Those rates will result 
in a cheaper base rate during cold weather and a higher base rate during warmer 
weather. 
 
A new customer will be added in the first quarter of 2013 that will result in 15% more 
gas sales. The District installed the new line to provide the service, but the customer will 
pay base rates plus a surcharge of ninety cents per dekatherm (plus gas costs) and 
$9,040 per month for five years in order to reimburse the District for the line.   
 
Additional information regarding a recent rate study is included in the packet within the 
letter from the District. 
 
Staff recommends the Board endorse the actions of the Natural Gas Utility 
District.  The District will remain under the jurisdiction until an audit is 
received which reflects compliance. 

12



 Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year March 31 2009 2010 2011 2012
Gas revenues 13,737,714$       11,007,681$      10,448,366$    8,913,755$      
Other revenues 375,912$            274,090$           232,069$         163,752$         

Total Operating Revenues 14,113,626$       11,281,771$      10,680,435$    9,077,507$      

Total Operating Expenses 13,644,186$       10,789,086$      10,705,949$    9,663,675$      

Operating Income 469,440$            492,685$           (25,514)$          (586,168)$        

Interest Expense

Change in Net Assets 469,440$            492,685$           (25,514)$          (586,168)$        

Supplemental Information
Principal payment
Depreciation 661,729$            635,689$           604,239$         549,464$         

Gas Rates 10/1/2004
Residential
First therm 4.95$                 4.95$               4.95$               
1- 50 threms 0.577$               0.577$             0.577$             
51 - 150 therms 0.567$               0.567$             0.567$             
over 150 therms 0.557$               0.557$             0.557$             
The average cost of gas is added to these rates monthly
Customers 6,852                  6,914                 7,025               7,127               

HAWKINS COUNTY GAS UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

13



14



15



 
Bedford County Utility District 

214 Bethany Lane 
p.o. box 2755 

Shelbyville, Tennessee 
931-684-1667 

Martin Davis, General Manager 
 

 January 24, 2013 
 
Joyce Welborn, Board Coordinator 
Office of the Comptroller of the Treasury, Division of Local Finance 
Utility Management Review Board 
505 Deaderick Street, Suite 1700 
Nashville, TN 37243-0274 
 
Dear Ms. Welborn: 
 
        Bedford County Utility District (BCUD) added to our system a new grower complex 
with eight (8) 55’ X 600’ chicken barns in January 2012. A small two (2) chicken barn 
farm that closed in 2009 has sold and the new owner has built ten (10) new 55’ X 600’ 
chicken barns each with a 1.3 Mil. BTU load, which came on line in March 2012. 
However natural gas sales lagged behind the previous year due the mild winter 2011-
12. The District also had two small old farms to close in the year ending June 30, 2012. 
However, the before mentioned 18 new barns will more than make up the difference in 
volume of the barns closing in coming years. 
  
        The Board of Commissioners increased the base price of natural gas in December, 
2011 by $1.00 per MCF and the wholesale cost of natural gas this fiscal year was lower 
than 2010-11 allowing BCUD to realize an improvement in net margins. However, the 
District had a net loss of $-139,752.29 (July1, 2011-June 30, 2012) vs. a net loss of  
$-109,601.59 (July1, 2010-June 30, 2011). This additional loss was due to timing of new 
load and a mild winter. 
 
        BCUD continues to focus on getting new customers.  BCUD has negotiated with 
two (2) chicken farmers to connect thirty eight (38) new 55’X600’ chicken barns when 
complete. Construction on these new barns has been delayed until March of 2013 due 
to weather. These new barns should start coming on midsummer 2013 and more than 
double the District’s agriculture load.  
 
        The District continues to work with the local Industrial Recruiter and has provided 
volume and availability information to a perspective industry interested in locating in the 
Industrial Park with natural gas available. 
 
If you have any questions please call.  
 
Sincerely Yours, 
 
Martin Davis 

 
“This institution is an equal opportunity provider, and employer.” 

16



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year June 30 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Gas revenues 162,342$       222,104$          341,948$          262,496$          377,280$           454,127$          471,622$          454,897$          332,839$           
Other revenues 2,900$             4,900$             3,950$               26,976$           1,800$              2,000$             2,050$              
Capital Contr 10,000$             
Operating Rev 162,342$    222,104$       344,848$       267,396$        381,230$         481,103$       473,422$        456,897$       344,889$        

Expenses 297,885$    348,350$       445,996$       352,324$        416,386$         456,226$       426,064$        378,291$       299,412$        

Operating Income (135,543)$     (126,246)$        (101,148)$        (84,928)$          (35,156)$            24,877$           47,358$            78,606$           45,477$             

Interest Expense 163,012$       164,638$          182,154$          187,777$          194,753$           193,769$          191,052$          188,208$          185,229$           

Net Assets - Gas (298,555)$   (290,884)$      (283,302)$      (272,705)$      (229,909)$       (168,892)$      (143,694)$      (109,602)$      (139,752)$       
Restatement 90,851$           -$                    -$                     -$                    -$                     
Net Assets - Gas (717,741)$   (1,009,210)$  (1,292,512)$  (1,565,217)$   (1,704,275)$    (1,873,167)$  (2,016,861)$   (2,126,463)$  (2,266,215)$    

Supplemental Info
Principal payment 31,559$         33,091$           unknown unknown 56,876$             unknown unknown unknown unknown
Depreciation 110,291$       115,245$          119,249$          125,196$          112,212$           116,757$          119,279$          116,757$          120,647$           

Gas Rates
Monthly charge 5.00$               5.00$               5.00$                 5.00$               5.00$                10.00$             10.00$              
Per MCF varies thru year varies thru year varies thru year varies thru year varies thru year varies thru year varies thru year

Customers - gas 221               208                  221                  232                  239                   249                  261                  286                  290                   

BEDFORD COUNTY UTILITY DISTRICT
GAS HISTORY FILE

17



Utility Management Review Board 
Status Report 

 
Case:   Iron City Utility District, Lawrence County 
President:  Tim Lamprecht 
Customers:  257 water 
Water Loss:  29.9% 
 
The Iron City Utility District has shown a negative change in net assets many years as 
reflected in the attached history file. 
 
The population in the area has decreased to the point that there are approximately 400 
water taps in the system, but only 257 customers.  All water is purchased from the City 
of St. Joseph for $2.35 per thousand gallons. 
 
In the last few years, improvements have been made as follows: 

1.  Financial improvement; 
2. Decreasing water losses; 
3. Commissioner training up to date; 
4. The meters are changed every 30,000 gallons; 
5. All new meters will be installed in 2014 because of the lead free rule; 
6. Iron City UD is helping West Point UD in loss detection; 
7. The UD has purchased leak detection equipment and is considering buying a 

valve locator; 
8. A leak survey is done by District personnel each quarter; 
9. A 2002 Chevrolet truck with a camper top has been purchased; 
10. A 4-wheeler has been purchased for meter reading and savings on gasoline; 
11. They are considering selling the donated truck that is very rarely used; 
12. They have cash available to repay the USDA loan in lieu of payments continuing 

until 2016; 
13. The commissioners do not take the full $300 monthly allowance; 
14. Actual cash in the bank has increased over $25,000; 
15. The water tank was inspected in September 2012; and, 
16. Fiscal year 2013 is projected to have a smaller negative change in net assets 

than 2012 by approximately $4,000 
 
The District needs to have all its policies in writing and adopted.  Staff suggested that 
they contact TAUD for assistance with the policies.  The $500 tap fee should probably be 
adjusted to better reflect any costs of the system, but with the lack of growth, that is 
not a priority. 
 
In lieu of a rate increase, the District is considering lowering the minimum bill usage to 
1,500 gallons per month or less. 
 
Staff is continuing to monitor the condition of the District. 

18



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
FYE Dec 31 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Water revenues 62,486$       61,427$         65,624$      77,226$       76,098$        82,794$       87,325$         129,821$    152,642$    150,766$     154,561$     
Other revenues 2,020$         2,795$           714$           5,300$         -$                  2,648$         4,457$           9,181$        5,148$        7,209$         3,726$         

Total Revenues 64,506$       64,222$         66,338$      82,526$       76,098$        85,442$       91,782$         139,002$    157,790$    157,975$     158,287$     

Total Expenses 73,618$       73,082$         78,294$      88,963$       110,791$      131,379$     157,087$       200,903$    202,127$    186,249$     181,667$     

Operating Income (9,112)$        (8,860)$          (11,956)$     (6,437)$       (34,693)$       (45,937)$     (65,305)$        (61,901)$     (44,337)$     (28,274)$      (23,380)$      

Interest Expense 2,359$         1,983$           1,526$        1,388$         1,257$          1,198$         993$              855$           1,274$        754$            342$            

Change in Net Assets (11,471)$      (10,843)$        (13,482)$     (7,825)$       (35,950)$       (47,135)$     (66,298)$        (62,756)$     (45,611)$     (29,028)$      (23,722)$      

Supplemental Info
Principal payment $9,188 $9,592 5,338$        2,442$         2,631$          2,710$         2,815$           791$           2,569$        2,395$         1,525$         
Depreciation 32,014$       31,567$         31,027$      34,303$       40,143$        40,143$       39,492$         39,479$      39,196$      39,172$       36,477$       

Water Rates
First 2,000 gallons 13.24$        14.24$         14.24$          14.24$         15.99$           26.00$        30.00$        30.00$         30.00$         
All over 2,0000 gallons 4.80$          5.00$           5.00$            5.00$           5.00$             6.20$          8.80$          8.80$           8.80$           
Customers 240 266 263 259 258 260 257 252 257
Connection fee 75.00$         75.00$         
Renter connection fee 150.00$       150.00$       
Re-connection fee 50.00$         50.00$         
Tap fee 500.00$       500.00$       
Water Loss 53.32% 45.78% 38.40% 29.90%

IRON CITY UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

19



Utility Management Review Board  
Status Report 

 
Case:   Lone Oak Utility District, Sequatchie County 
Chairman:  John Lyman 
Customers:  125 water 
Water Loss:  16.38% 
 
 
The Lone Oak Utility District has been reported to the Board as having a negative change in net 
assets since as of December 31, 2004.  The financial and rate history is attached. 
 
A creation petition was presented to the UMRB in December 1999.  The entire system was built 
with EPA and CDBG funds.  Tennessee American also made a “like kind investment in the 
Company’s system in the amount of approximately $260,000.” 
 
The Operation and Management Agreement is for a period of forty years and gives Tennessee 
American the right to install lines and taps within the service area of the District and own those 
lines and taps.  Although Lone Oak water is purchased from Walden’s Ridge Utility District, the 
agreement provides that Tennessee American is the “exclusive provider for the total water 
requirements of the customers served” from the Lone Oak system. Walden’s Ridge purchases 
100% of their water from Tennessee American.  If Tennessee American is required to install, 
relocate and/or replace capital items (unit of property), “in every such instance, the unit of 
property shall be and remain the property of” Tennessee American. 
 
The agreement allows Tennessee American to bill and collect on behalf of the District. The 
accountants of the District are to review – at least annually – the system of accounts maintained 
by Tennessee American and report the results to both parties.  Tennessee American is to pay the 
District no more than $12,000 annually to pay reasonable costs of: 1) Board of Director 
expenses, 2) Engineering, Legal and Accounting Expenses, 3) Liability Insurance and Bonds and 
4) Miscellaneous Supplies and Expenses. 
 
The Board voted at the April 2010 meeting to require the District to have discussions 
with Sequatchie County regarding a solution to the financially distressed condition of 
the District and to require the District to review the possibility of becoming something 
other than a utility district.   
 
Staff has been told that nothing has changed in the status of the District.  Officials have met with 
Sequatchie County and the City of Dunlap.  It appears that the hindrance in any sort of takeover 
of the District is prevented by the fact that any assets that must be assumed have a high 
depreciation expense associated with them. 
 
Staff has no further suggestions except the consolidation with Walden’s Ridge Utility District.  
That consolidation has been deemed unacceptable by the Lone Oak commissioners and the 
Sequatchie County commissioners. 

20



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year December 31 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Water revenues 16,556$      9,174$       9,790$       10,702$      11,588$     12,061$     11,242$     12,508$     
Other revenues -$               -$              19,361$     11,217$      10,480$     10,325$     10,803$     11,167$     

Total Operating Revenues 16,556$    9,174$     29,151$    21,919$     22,068$   22,386$   22,045$   23,675$   

Total Operating Expenses 66,902$    66,717$   70,307$    69,716$     72,309$   69,064$   70,594$   77,623$   

Operating Income (50,346)$     (57,543)$    (41,156)$    (47,797)$     (50,241)$    (46,678)$    (48,549)$    (53,948)$    

Interest Expense 1,016$        2,980$       2,368$       1,708$        1,001$       248$          

TCA Reportable Income (51,362)$   (60,523)$  (43,524)$  (49,505)$   (51,242)$  (46,926)$  (48,549)$  (53,948)$  

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 1,800$        7,884$       8,497$       9,156$        9,863$       7,900$       
Depreciation 54,005$      54,765$     54,765$     54,875$      54,885$     54,562$     54,383$     54,113$     

Water Rates
First 2,000 gallons 31.39$        31.39$       31.39$       31.39$        31.39$       31.39$       31.39$       31.39$       
over 2,000 gallons 5.25$          5.25$         5.25$         5.25$          5.25$         5.25$         5.25$         5.25$         
Customers 106 106           101            112 120 120 121 125
Water Loss 18.50% 18.27% 18.58% 16.38%

LONE OAK UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

21



22



23



24



25



26



October 5, 2012 
 
Mr. L. J. Hoogendoorn Manager 
Cherokee Hills Utility District 
P. O. Box 328 
Copperhill, TN  37317 
 
Dear Mr. Hoogendoorn: 
 
The Utility Management Review Board (Board)met on October 4, 2012, in 
part, to discuss the reported excessive water loss of the Cherokee Hills 
Utility District.  At that meeting, the Board voted to require District 
representatives to attend the February 7, 2013, meeting of the Board to 
explain why meters have not, or will not, be installed and how the average 
customer bill is over 9,000 gallons per month.  
 
The February meeting will begin at 10:00 am CT in Room 31 of the 
Legislative Plaza in Nashville, Tennessee.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 615-401-7864 
or Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Joyce Welborn 
Board Coordinator 

27

mailto:Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov


28



January 3, 2013    RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 
 
Mr. L. J. Hoogendoorn, Manager 
 And Board of Commissioners 
Cherokee Hills Utility District 
P. O. Box 328 
Copperhill, TN  37317-0328 
 
Dear Sirs: 
 
I appreciate the invitation to visit your system, however, it will not be 
possible for me to make the trip prior to your appearance before the Utility 
Management Review Board (UMRB) next month. 
 
At the October 4, 2012, meeting of the UMRB, it voted to require 
representatives of the Cherokee Hills Utility District to attend its meeting 
on February 7, 2013.  That was not simply an invitation.  Staff has no 
authority to reverse that decision. 
 
According to your audit, the Cherokee Hills Utility District was created, in 
1957 as a utility district.  It is also on file with the Tennessee Secretary of 
State as a utility district.  There appears to be no difference in Cherokee 
Hills Utility District or any of the other 180 districts in regards to its 
creation or responsibilities or compliance with Tennessee state law. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 615-401-7864 
or Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Joyce Welborn 
Board Coordinator 

29

mailto:Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov


30



31



32



33



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited 
Fiscal Year December 31 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Water revenues 41,032$       43,413$      44,822$    49,204$    52,286$    48,591$  56,115$    50,935$       47,225$     59,824$      48,679$    
Other revenues 1,023$         1,002$        1,110$      -$          1,359$      1,464$    46$           48$             34$           36$            27$           
Contributions (Loretto &county) 340,868$     
Total Operating Revenues 42,055$       44,415$      45,932$    49,204$    53,645$    50,055$  56,161$    391,851$     47,259$     59,860$      48,706$    

Total Operating Expenses 48,104$       41,661$      41,385$    40,901$    45,308$    39,470$  54,054$    48,533$       50,014$     39,621$      41,845$    

Operating Income (6,049)$        2,754$        4,547$      8,303$      8,337$      10,585$  2,107$      343,318$     (2,755)$     20,239$      6,861$      

Interest Expense 4,566$         3,370$        4,905$      3,910$      3,802$      3,598$    3,551$      3,579$         3,066$       4,468$        9,569$      
Loss on Abandonment (2,028)$        
Change in Net Assets (12,643)$      (616)$         (358)$        4,393$      4,535$      6,987$    (1,444)$     339,739$     (5,821)$     15,771$      (2,708)$     

Ret. Earn./Total Assets (35,908)$      (36,383)$    (36,699)$   (21,572)$   (13,178)$   (6,192)$   (7,636)$     332,104$     326,283$   342,054$    339,346$  

Supplemental Information
Defaulted debt ? ? 14,545$    16,405$    20,379$  25,922$    31,690$       26,756$     24,740$      
Principal payment 6,336$         1,098$        6,587$      3,870$      3,661$      1,187$    -$          -$            -$          12,541$      15,905$    
Depreciation 5,706$         5,778$        5,785$      5,751$      5,386$      5,386$    5,386$      5,386$         12,756$     12,756$      12,756$    

Water Rates
First 2,000 gallons 23.00$      23.00$      23.00$    23.00$      23.00$         23.00$       23.00$        23.00$      
First 2,500 gallons 20.00$         20.00$        20.00$      
over 2,000 gallons 4.50$        4.50$        4.50$      4.50$        4.50$           4.50$        4.50$         4.50$        
over 2,500 gallons 3.00$           3.00$         3.00$        
Customers 136 122 132 124 128 140 141 145 130 134 122
Water loss 70% 69% 66% 64% 65% 67.37% 65.92% 67.53% 67.00% 41.00% 45.00%

WEST POINT UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



Water Audit Report for: West Point Utility District
Reporting Year:

All volumes to be entered as: MILLION GALLONS (US) PER YEAR

WATER SUPPLIED
Volume from own sources: n/a 0.000 Million gallons (US)/yr (MG/Yr)

Master meter error adjustment (enter positive value): n/a

Water imported: 3 9.890 MG/Yr

Water exported: n/a 0.000 MG/Yr

WATER SUPPLIED: 9.890 MG/Yr
.

AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION
Billed metered: 7 5.391 MG/Yr

Billed unmetered: n/a 0.000 MG/Yr
Unbilled metered: n/a 0.000 MG/Yr Pcnt: Value:

Unbilled unmetered: 10 0.124 MG/Yr 1.25%

AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: 5.514 MG/Yr

WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 4.376 MG/Yr

Apparent Losses Pcnt: Value:
Unauthorized consumption: 10 0.025 MG/Yr 0.25%

Customer metering inaccuracies: 3 0.284 MG/Yr 5.00%
Systematic data handling errors: 10 0.000 MG/Yr

Apparent Losses: 0.308  

Real Losses (Current Annual Real Losses or CARL)
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 4.067 MG/Yr

WATER LOSSES: 4.376 MG/Yr

NON-REVENUE WATER
NON-REVENUE WATER: 4.499 MG/Yr

= Total Water Loss + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered

SYSTEM DATA

Length of mains: 7 8.0 miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: 7 155

Connection density: 19 conn./mile main
Average length of customer service line: 10 0.0 ft

Average operating pressure: 5 100.0 psi

COST DATA

Total annual cost of operating water system: 10 $67,319 $/Year

Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): 9 $8.00
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): 10 $612.38 $/Million gallons

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Financial Indicators
Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: 45.5%
Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: 7.5%

Annual cost of Apparent Losses: $2,468
Annual cost of Real Losses: $2,491

Operational Efficiency Indicators

Apparent Losses per service connection per day: 5.45 gallons/connection/day

Real Losses per service connection per day*: N/A gallons/connection/day

Real Losses per length of main per day*: 1,392.85 gallons/mile/day

Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure: gallons/connection/day/psi

Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): Not Valid

From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): 4.07

* only the most applicable of these two indicators will be calculated

 WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE:

 PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:

     1: Water imported

     2: Customer metering inaccuracies

     3: Billed metered

 Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:

*** YOUR SCORE IS: 59 out of 100 ***

Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]:

                Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed                

Systematic data handling errors are likely, please enter a non-zero value; otherwise grade = 5

$/1000 gallons (US)

*** UARL cannot be calculated as either average pressure, number of connecions or length of mains is too small: SEE UARL DEFINITION ***

A weighted scale for the components of consumption and water loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score

Choose this option to 
enter a percentage of 

billed metered 
consumption. This is 
NOT a default value

Enter a positive value, otherwise a default percentage of 1.25% and a grading of 5 is applied

 AWWA WLCC Free Water Audit Software: Reporting Worksheet

2011 1/2011 - 12/2011

<< Enter grading in column 'E'

MG/Yr

? 

? 

? 

? 

? 

? Click to access definition 

? 

? 

? 

? 

? 

? 

Back to Instructions 

Please enter data in the white cells below. Where available, metered values should be used; if metered values are unavailable please estimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of 
the input data by grading each component (1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades 

? 

? 

? 

? 
? 
? 

? 

? 

? 

(pipe length between curbstop and customer 
meter or property boundary) 

Use buttons to select 
percentage of water supplied 

OR 
value 

? Click here:  
for help using option 
buttons below 

For more information, click here to see the Grading Matrix worksheet 

? 

Copyright © 2010, American Water Works Association. All Rights Reserved. 

? 

? 

? 

? 

 WAS v4.2 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



DISTRICT COUNTY LAST AUDIT
LAST BD 

APPEARANCE
Bean Station UD Grainger August-12 June-13
Bedford County UD Bedford  June-12 April-10
Bloomingdale UD                     WL Sullivan June-12 October-12
Bon de Croft UD White June-12 June-13
Bristol-Bluff City UD Sullivan July-11 October-10
Carderview UD Johnson June-12 February-13
Cherokee Hills UD                    WL Polk December-11 February-13
Chuckey UD                                WL Greene June-12 October-11
Clarksburg UD Carroll December-11 October-12
Clay Gas UD Clay  August-11 February-10
Cookeville Boat Dock Road     WL Putnam December-10 February-12
Cross Anchor UD                      WL Greene June-12 October-11
DeWhite UD                               WL White December-11 October-11
Double Springs UD                     WL Putnam April-12 February-13
East Sevier UD                           WL Sevier June-11 October-11
Fall River Road UD Lawrence  December-11 October-12
First UD of Hardin County Hardin March-12 February-12
Foster Falls UD Marion December-10 June-13
Gibson County Municipal District  WL Gibson November-11 October-12
Hampton UD                              WL Carter November-11 August-12
Intermont UD Sullivan December-11 October-11
Iron City UD Lawrence  December-11 February-12
Jackson County UD                     WL Jackson December-10 October-12
Leoma UD Lawrence  December-11 February-12
Lone Oak UD Sequatchie  December-11 April-10
Minor Hill UD                               WL Giles December-11 February-13
Mooresburg UD Hawkins   December-11 August-08
Mowbray UD                               WL Hamilton June-12 August-12
Natural Gas UD of Hawkins Co Hawkins   March-12 February-13
Northeast Henry County UD      WL Henry June-12 October-11
Northwest Henry County UD Henry June-12 June-13
Quebeck-Walling                          WL White December-11 February-13
Sale Creek UD                               WL Hamilton June-12 October-11
Samburg Utility District Obion  January-12 October-08
Shady Grove UD                           WL Jefferson September-12 October-11
Siam UD                                         WL Carter January-12 August-12
Sneedville UD Hancock March-11 June-13
SoddyDaisy-Falling Water UD     WL Hamilton August-12 October-11
South Elizabethton UD                 WL Carter February-12 June-13
South Giles UD                              WL Giles December-10 October-12
South Side UD Smith December-11 February-12
Tarpley Shop UD                             WL Giles June-12 June-13
Tuckaleechee UD Blount June-11 August-12
Unicoi Water UD Unicoi September-12 August-12
Webb Creek UD Sevier  December-11 October-11
West Cumberland UD Cumberland June-12 August-12
West Point UD                                 WL Lawrence  December-11 February-13
Woodlawn UD                                WL Montgomery December-11 October-12

JURISDICTION LIST FOR THE UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD FEBRUARY 2013

56



WATER LOSS STATUS

District
original 

referral %
original audit 
referral date

subsequent 
review %

subsequent 
review date

subsequent 
review %

subsequent 
review date

Bloomingdale 45.064% 6/30/2010 44.64% 6/30/2011
Cherokee Hills 100.000% 12/31/2010 100.00% 12/31/2011
Chuckey 36.770% 6/30/2010 39.49% 6/30/2011
Cookeville Boat Dock Road 45.480% 12/31/2009 45.92% 12/31/2010
Cross Anchor 42.660% 6/30/2010 45.73% 6/30/2011
DeWhite 42.000% 12/31/2010 41.60% 12/31/2011
Double Springs 37.580% 4/30/2010 37.74% 4/30/2011 37.040% 4/30/2012
East Sevier 75.000% 6/30/2010 72.00% 6/30/2011
Fall River Road 45.00% 12/31/2010 41.00% 12/31/2011
Gibson Co. Municipal 45.720% 11/30/2010 45.21% 11/30/2011
Hampton 33.330% 11/30/2010 35.49% 11/30/2011
Harbor 54.350% 6/30/2010 61.64% 6/30/2011
Intermont 35.11% 12/31/2010 41.75% 12/31/2011
Jackson County 36.93% 12/31/2010
Minor Hill 37.706% 12/31/2010 37.87% 12/31/2011
Mooresburg 68.623% 12/31/2009 56.23% 12/31/2010 61.686% 12/31/2011
Mowbray 41.480% 8/31/2010 42.30% 6/30/2011 42.275% 6/30/2012
Northeast Henry 35.000% 6/30/2010 41.52% 6/30/2011 36.966% 6/30/2012
Quebeck-Walling 35.100% 12/31/2010 37.01% 12/31/2011
Sale Creek 60.320% 6/30/2010 49.24% 6/30/2011 35.730% 6/30/2012
Samburg 51.632% 1/31/2012
Shady Grove 37.090% 9/30/2010 40.16% 9/30/2011 40.160% 9/30/2012
Siam 39.378% 1/31/2010 39.38% 1/31/2011 50.055% 1/31/2012
Soddy-Daisy/Falling Water 39.960% 6/30/2010 37.50% 8/31/2011 35.935% 8/31/2012
South Elizabethton 38.360% 2/28/2010 37.37% 2/28/2011 38.142% 2/29/2012
South Giles 40.744% 12/31/2010
Tarpley Shop 37.000% 6/30/2012
West Cumberland 36.716% 6/30/2012
West Point 67.000% 12/31/2009 41.00% 12/31/2010 45.000% 12/31/2011
Woodlawn 37% 12/31/2011

57



58



59


	UMRB Sunshine 2013 February
	UMRB Minutes of October 4, 2012
	Carderview UD case 02072013
	Carderview
	History file

	info from UD 02072013
	Hawkins Co Gas UD case 02072013
	Hawkins County Gas UD
	History file

	info from UD 02072013
	info from UD 02072013
	Bedford County UD
	Gas History

	Iron City UD Status 020720139
	Iron City UD
	History file

	Lone Oak UD status  02072013
	Lone Oak UD
	History file

	info from UD 10042012
	Cherokee Hills UD WL results 10042012
	info from UD 02072013
	Cherokee Hills UD follow up request 01032013
	info from UD 02072013
	West Point UD
	History file

	WL responses from UD
	West Point UD AWWA Oct 2012
	Reporting Worksheet

	info from UD 02072013
	info from UD 02072013
	info from UD 02072013
	compliance 02072013
	name change and merger 02072013
	Jurisdiction 2013 February
	Sheet1

	Water loss status ONGOING both bds (2)
	UMRB

	02072013 complaint log



